ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 13, 2008
1: 06 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Carl Gatto, Co-Chair
Representative Crai g Johnson, Co-Chair
Representati ve Anna Faircl ough
Represent ati ve Bob Roses
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son
Representati ve Bryce Edgnon
Representative David Guttenberg
Representative Scott Kawasaki

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al l menbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTI ON NO. 31
Qpposing the enactnent of the Protect Anerica's WIldlife Act of
2007 that intends to prohibit aerial hunting of wildlife, which
is essential for predator control in Al aska.
- HEARD AND HELD
SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BI LL NO 348
"An Act relating to the adoption of regulations by the Board of
Gane. "
- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HIR 31
SHORT TI TLE: OPPOSE FED LAW RE AERI AL HUNTI NG
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) KELLER

01/ 30/ 08 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 30/ 08 (H) RES
02/ 13/ 08 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

BILL: HB 348

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -1- February 13, 2008



SHORT TI TLE: BOARD OF GAME REGULATI ONS
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) KELLER

01/ 31/ 08 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 31/ 08 (H) FSH, RES

02/ 06/ 08 (H) SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE | NTRODUCED
02/ 06/ 08 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 06/ 08 (H) RES, FIN

02/ 13/ 08 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE WES KELLER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented his sponsor statement for HIR 31.

JI' M POUND, St af f

to Representative Ws Keller

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions regardi ng HIR 31.

ROD ARNO, Executive Director

Al aska Qut door Counci |

Wasil | a, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported HIR 31.

ROBERT FI THI AN, Executive Director

Al aska Professional Hunters Associ ation (APHA)
Lower Tonsina, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported HJR 31.

JERRY MCCUTCHEON
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported the basic prem se of HIR 31.

SCOIT OGAN, President

Sportsnmen for Fish and Wldlife (SFW
Pal mer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported HIR 31.

DOUG LARSON, Director

Division of WIldlife Conservation
Al aska Departnent of Fish & Gane
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 2- February 13, 2008



POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing on HIR 31, answered
guesti ons.

REPRESENTATI VE WES KELLER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented his sponsor statement for HB 348.

KEVI N SAXBY, Senior Assistant Attorney General

Nat ural Resources Section

G vil Division (Anchorage)

Depart ment of Law (DQL)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions regardi ng SSHB 348.

ROD ARNO, Executive Director

Al aska Qut door Counci |

Wasil | a, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SSHB 348.

SCOTT OGAN, President

Sportsnmen for Fish and Wldlife (SFW

Pal mer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported the concept of SSHB 348.

ROBERT FI THI AN, Executive Director

Al aska Professional Hunters Association (APHA)
Lower Tonsina, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supported SSHB 348.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

COCHAIR CARL GATTO called the House Resources Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 1:06:24 PM Represent ati ves
Seaton, Roses, Kawasaki, Fairclough, Johnson, and Gatto were
present at the call to order. Representati ves Quttenberg,

Edgnon, and W1l son arrived as the neeting was in progress.

COCHAIR GATTO stated that the House Resources Standing
Comm ttee would not be neeting on Friday [2/15/08].

HIR 31- OPPCSE FED LAW RE AERI AL HUNTI NG

1: 07: 31 PM

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 3- February 13, 2008



CO CHAI R GATTO announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTION NO 31, Opposing the enactnent of the
Protect America's WIldlife Act of 2007 that intends to prohibit
aerial hunting of wldlife, which is essential for predator
control in Al aska.

1: 07: 45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WES KELLER, Al aska State Legislature, speaking as
t he sponsor of HIR 31, stated that outside groups have for years
tried to manage Al aska's assets of fish and gane. The | atest
attack is coming fromthe U S. Congress with the introduction of
H R 3663, [the Protect Anerica's WIldlife Act of 2007]. \While
the bill |anguage does not specify that it is directed at
Al aska, a press release on the bill is aimed specifically at
Al aska. He said HIR 31 says no to federal |egislation and says
Al aska's biologists and [Board of Gane] nenbers know better than
t he Washington politicians. The resolution asks nenbers of the
US Congress to join Alaska's Congressional Delegation in
sayi ng no.

JIM POUND, Staff, to Representative Ws Keller, Al aska State
Legislature, in response to Co-Chair Gatto, confirmed that
copies of HR 3663 are in the cormttee's packets.

1:09: 37 PM

CO CHAIR GATTO i nqui red who the sponsor of H R 3663 is.

MR. POUND responded Congressman CGeorge MIler of California.

CO CHAIR GATTO noted the bill's nicknanme, the PAW Act. He said
Congressman Mller is a nenber of the U S. House Conmittee on
Nat ural Resources and has sone cl out.

MR. POUND replied correct.

CO- CHAI R GATTO opened public testinony on HIR 31

1:10: 27 PM

ROD ARNO, Executive Director, Al aska Qutdoor Council, testified
that his organization of over 10,000 Al askans supports HIR 31
because it is extrenmely inportant that the U S. Congress know
the Alaska State Legislature is behind Al aska' s Congressional

Del egation in opposing H R 3663. He said the Al aska Qutdoor
Counci | requests that one anendnent be nade to HIJIR 31 on page 2,

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 4- February 13, 2008



line 6, which reads: "Whereas npose and caribou represent
livestock to many Al askans". Al askans do not consider their
wild food harvest to be livestock, he stated. The definition of
livestock is horse, cattle, sheep, and other useful aninals kept
or raised on a farm or ranch. In response to Co-Chair Gatto,
M. Arno agreed that using the term "food stock"” would be fine.
In further response to Co-Chair Gatto, M. Arno confirnmed that
he is famliar wwth HR 3663.

1: 11: 40 PM

CO CHAI R GATTO asked what is included in the federal |egislation
that should pronpt the Al aska State Legislature to oppose it.

MR. ARNO answered that Congressman MIller is joining in consort
with the Defenders of WIldlife, the national organization behind
the 2008 Airborne WIf Ballot Initiative which would ban sane
day airborne or aerial control of predators. He said H R 3663
woul d make changes to the federal Airborne Hunting Act [of 1972]
to stop Alaska's ability to do predator-prey nmanagenent.

CO CHAIR GATTO said he sees it that way al so.
1:13: 29 PM

ROBERT FI THI AN, Executive Director, Alaska Professional Hunters
Associ ation (APHA), stated that the APHA supports HIR 31 because
it is vital to the integrity and fiber of Alaska s rural
lifestyles, the guided hunting industry, and hunters in general.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON i nqui red whet her many people in APHA think
nmoose and cari bou are |ivestock.

MR. FI TH AN responded no, APHA concurs with M. Arno's proposed
anendnent .

CO-CHAIR GATTO asked whether the term food stock would be
sati sfactory.

MR. FITHI AN said he is unsure that food stock is the right term
and is thinking perhaps wildlife resources. He deferred to what
M. Kevin Saxby woul d reconmend.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG i nquired how many clients the Al aska
Prof essi onal Hunters Association has in a year.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 5- February 13, 2008



MR. FI THI AN stated that APHA has 150-160 i ndividual professional
menbers that provide guide service in Al aska. He said he does
not know the exact total nunber of clients, but the average
nunber per APHA nenber would be about 15-20. Hi s organi zation
represents an industry of over $200 million per year, he noted.

1:16: 49 PM

JERRY MCCUTCHEON spoke on behalf of hinself in support of the
basic prem se of HIR 31. He has watched wol ves and other gane
for nore years than nost of the commttee nenbers have been
alive, he remarked. He said he renenbers when Don Shel don used
to conplain about the federal governnment poisoning wolves and
how it caused the deaths of other kinds of animals as well. He
al so renenbered an aerial hunting accident that wecked the
plane, killed two people, and injured two people back in the
days when Lowell Thomas, Don Sheldon, and Jay Hamond used to
hunt . Wiy does the federal government now want to protect the
wol ves it used to poison, he asked. The wol ves ate thensel ves
out of house and hone in [Denali National Park and Preserve] and
then mgrated out to state | and. He said he does not see why
the state needs to feed the wolves |like the "greenies" think
shoul d be done.

1:18: 57 PM

SCOTT OGAN, President, Sportsnen for Fish and WIldlife (SFW,
pointed out that he is testifying on his own tine and his
coorments do not represent his enployer, the Departnent of
Natural Resources, State of Al aska. He said his organization
strongly supports HIR 31 and the only regrettable thing is that
the [U S Fish and WIldlife Service] is underutilized in doing
predator control in Al aska.

CO- CHAIR GATTO closed public testinony after ascertaining that
no one else wished to testify.

1: 20: 01 PM

CO CHAIR GATTO noved that the conmmttee adopt Amendnment 1 as
foll ows:

Page 2, line 6:
Delete "livestock"
| nsert "food stock"

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH obj ected to Amendnent 1.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 6- February 13, 2008



1: 20: 35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH noved that the committee adopt an

amendnent to Amendnent 1 as follows: delete "livestock™ and
insert "a subsistence and urban food supply source". She said
the problem with using food stock is that it is a food and a
value to Al askans in different ways. It is not just a hunting
for the kill; it is to supply famlies with nourishing food

Thus, Amendnent 1, as anended, would be as foll ows:

Page 2, line 6:

Del ete "livestock"
Insert "a subsistence and wurban food supply
sour ce"
1:21:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON obj ected for di scussion purposes.
1:22: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KAWASAKI said he does not think subsistence and
urban covers everybody, for instance people living in Delta.

CO-CHAI R GATTO commented that soneone could be a rural user but

not a subsistence user. He said 100 percent coverage could be
provided by saying, "both subsistence and nonsubsistence".
Picking out the two groups of subsistence and hunting | eaves
some people out. Representative Fairclough's anendnent to

Amendnent 1 tends not to cover everybody.
1:24: 36 PM
REPRESENTATI VE FAIRCLOQUGH, in response to conmments from the

commttee nenbers, wthdrew her anendnent to Anendnent 1 and
noved that the comm ttee adopt a new anendnent to Amendnment 1 as

fol |l ows: del ete "food stock”, insert "a food supply source for
all Al askans". Thus, Anmendnent 1, as anended, would be as
fol | ows:

Page 2, line 6:
Del ete "livestock"
Insert "a food supply source for all Al askans”

1: 24: 47 PM

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -7- February 13, 2008



CO- CHAIR JOHNSON requested the conmittee entertain adding the
word "asset", such as, "a valuable asset and food source [for
all Al askans]". He said this is a clearer definition of what
the conmmttee believes and is consistent with SSHB 348, a bill
that is comng before the conmttee next.

1:25:21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said the commttee needs to |ook at the
federal legislation [H R 3663] because it deals wth all
wildlife, not just predator control. He noted that HIR 31
speci fies nobose and caribou, thus the resolution excludes other
i mportant food sources such as sheep, goat, and rabbits. The
federal legislation wuld result in being wunable to fly
somewhere and hunt rabbits that sanme day, unless the hunter flew
on a regularly scheduled comercial aircraft. He expressed his

concern that the request for rejection of HR 3663 is being too
narrowly defined by basing it solely on the idea of predator
control for tw species. This does not cover the full
paraneters on which the request for rejection is based, he said.
For instance, there could be a subsistence energency in a rural
area that would necessitate the Board of Gane passing special
regul ations allowing flights to another area to take extra game
ani mal s. He urged the conmttee to keep the objection broad
enough to cover a nultitude of circunstances.

1:28: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATQN, in response to Co-Chair Gatto regarding
the anmendnment to Anmendnent 1, stated he does not object to the
broad idea of saying, "a food source for Al askans", but he would
prefer it to say, "npbose, caribou, and other wldlife represent
an inportant food source for Al askans".

1:29:55 PM

CO CHAIR GATTO suggested, "regular and dependable food source
for Al askans".

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH wi t hdrew her amendnent to Anendment 1.
CO- CHAI R GATTO wi t hdr ew Amendnent 1.
1: 30: 15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES noved that the conmttee adopt Amendnent 2
as foll ows:

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 8- February 13, 2008



Page 2, line 6:
Del ete "noose and cari bou represent |ivestock”
Insert "much of Alaska's wildlife represents a
natural food source"

1:31:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON objected to Anendnent 2. She offered an
anendnent to Anendnent 2 as follows: Page 2, line 6, delete
"to", insert "for". Thus, Anmendnent 2, as anended, would be as
fol | ows:

Page 2, line 6:
Del ete "noose and cari bou represent |ivestock to"
Insert "much of Alaska's wldlife represents a
natural food source for"

There being no objection, the anendnent to Amendnent 2 was
adopt ed.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON wi t hdrew her objection to Arendnent 2.
There being no objection, Arendnent 2, as anended, was adopt ed.
1:33:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH said she would like the commttee to
consi der sone additional |anguage and have the maker of the
resol ution conment on it.

1: 34: 15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER, in response to Co-Chair Gatto, said he
has no problemw th the | anguage of Anmendnment 2, as anended. He
expl ained that the word |ivestock was chosen because H R 3663
provi des an exenption that allows the killing of predators by
aerial or any other means in order to protect |ivestock.

1: 34: 45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON noved that the conmmttee adopt Anendnent 3
as foll ows:

Page 2, line 11, after "sent":
I nsert "electronically"

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 9- February 13, 2008



There bei ng no objection, Amendrment 3 was adopt ed.
1:36: 14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked for the sponsor's opinion
regarding insertion of the foll ow ng | anguage:

Page 2, after line 6:

WHEREAS airborne hunting is illegal in Al aska;
and

WHEREAS [the] Al aska predator control program is
mandated by the Alaska State Legislature, and
regul ated by the independent Al aska Board [of] Gane;
and

WHEREAS Al aska's wildlife nmanagenent prograns are
conducted entirely within the tenets of the Airborne
Hunting Act; and

WHEREAS predat or managenent in specific areas of
the state increases opportunities for Al askans to put
healthy food on their famlies' dinner table[s];

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH noted that nmuch of the aforenentioned
| anguage is taken from the governor's [2/27/07] letter to
Congressman George M Il er of California.

REPRESENTATIVE KELLER said he thinks the Ianguage woul d have to
be, "airborne hunting 'of ganme' is illegal

1: 37: 48 PM

DOUG LARSON, Director, Division of WIldlife Conservation, Al aska
Departnment of Fish & Gane, noted that airborne hunting is
something that comes up repeatedly. Predator control activity
is not hunting, he pointed out. The two are different. Thus
it is appropriate that airborne hunting is not hunting in regard
to Al aska's predator control prograns.

CO CHAI R GATTO asked whether M. Larson has any suggestions for
changes or deletions in the resolution's |anguage.

MR. LARSON replied he did not get all the details of what was
put forward, but he did not hear anything out of place relative

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -10- February 13, 2008



to the information put out by ADF&G and what the governor sent
in her letter to Congressman M|l er.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES said aerial hunting is illegal in Al aska
and his understanding is that Representative Fairclough was just
stating that.

1: 39: 12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON understood the Board of Ganme has not
all oned sane day airborne hunting of bear, but that it could
and that is why bear was put [into HB 256]. "Was that then
illegal, or was it just not happening at the current tine but
the Board of Gane has the ability to allow that,"” he asked.

MR. LARSON answered yes. Currently, if a proposal is brought
forward to include bears for |anding and shooting, the Board of
Gamre could do that as a viable nethod wunder the hunting
regul ati ons. He said [HB 256] would add brown bears as a
species for which the board could not allow [land and shoot]
under hunting regul ations.

1: 40: 51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he is renoving his objection in case
he had nade one.

1:41: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved that the comm ttee adopt Anendnent 4
as follows:

Page 2, line 3, after "livestock":
I nsert "or biological energencies”

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON explained he 1is adding this |anguage
because H R 3663, Section 3, is a provision for biological
ener genci es. In response to Co-Chair Gatto, Representative
Seaton agreed to nmake Anendnent 4 conceptual in case this issue
appears el sewhere in HIR 31.

REPRESENTATI VE KAWASAKI said he does not have a problem wth
Amendrment 4, but thinks lines 2-3 are false given his
interpretation of the backup material provided for H R 3663
Section 3.

1:43: 00 PM

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -11- February 13, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON cited Section 4 of H R 3663 which states
that predators can be shot from the air under <certain
conditions, one of those being a biological energency. He said
he thought he and Representative Kawasaki were tal king about the
same thing in not wanting the resolution to be limted to the
protection of |livestock because there is nothing in Section 4
that says it is for the protection of Ilivestock, it says for
bi ol ogi cal energency.

CO CHAIR GATTO comented that the problem with the |anguage in
H R 3663, "to prevent a biological energency”, is that it means
once you have it there is nothing that can be done about it.

CO CHAI R JOHNSON pointed out the use of the term "irreversible"
in the definition of biological energency in Section 4 of HR
3663. He asked whether the state of Alaska's definition of
bi ol ogi cal energency is the same as that in HR 3663.

MR. LARSON replied that this clause concerns ADF& G because once
there is an irreversible decline, it is too |late. That is why

[HB 256] talks about active managenent, he said. Wen it is
seen that sonething is happening in a population, taking sone
sort of action under those circunstances makes sense. What

woul d be the point of doing anything once it reaches the point
of being irreversible, he asked.

1:45:10 PM

CO CHAIR GATTO noted that H R 3663 limts the state to proving
that the irreversible decline is caused by predators. He said
it does not matter what causes the decline because the state
needs the ability to act on it before it is irreversible. He
asked whether the language in HIR 31 should be clarified to
reflect the term irreversible decline when defining biological
enmer gency.

MR. LARSON expl ained that the existing intensive nanagenment | aw

speaks to population objectives and harvest objectives. The
law s premise is that information will be obtained relative to
popul ati ons, and that when those objectives are not being net
the departnment will provide information as to the cause. To the
extent that predators play into that, the departnent would take
on predator managenent. He said HR 3663 is a whole different
paradigm wth biol ogical energency because it is totally
different from the intensive nanagenment |law and how the

departnment is currently expected to operate.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -12- February 13, 2008



1: 47: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON pointed out that he is not arguing to
change Alaska's laws to correspond with federal |aws. Rat her
he is arguing that on page 2 of HIR 31 it is inportant to
address aerial predator control as it relates to both |ivestock
and bi ol ogi cal energenci es.

CO CHAIR GATTO commrented that menbers do not want sonething to
be said that is untrue and have the U S. Congress say the Al aska
State Legislature does not know what it is tal king about.

1: 48: 42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES said this is a resolution, not a bill.
VWiile it is inmportant to be accurate, the reality is that nost
people will not read past the first two lines on the first page.
There is even the question of how effective resolutions are
anyway, but that does not dimnish the fact that it needs to be
done. The commttee is getting nitpicky, he said, and this does
not change the end result that a resolution is passed that
opposes H R 3663.

1: 49: 38 PM
REPRESENTATI VE FAlI RCLOUGH said she would offer her additional

| anguage in another conmttee so the resolution will not be held
up and can go forward.

1:49:59 PM

CO CHAI R GATTO said he does not think the congressnen thensel ves
will read the resolution but their aides wll, and any
m sstatenents in the resolution will take away from what Al aska

wants to do now and in the future.
1: 50: 48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON wi t hdrew Anendnent 4. He noved that the
commttee adopt Amendnent 5 as foll ows:

Page 2, line 3:
Del ete "except for the protection of |ivestock”

There being no objection, Arendnent 5 was adopt ed.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -13- February 13, 2008



1: 53:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH declined to offer her four suggested
"whereas's" as an anendnent. She agreed the resolution needs to
be accurate and said she will leave it to the sponsor to choose
whet her to incorporate her suggested | anguage.

CO- CHAIR GATTO said the resolution will not be heard again unti
next Wednesday [ 2/20/08].

REPRESENTATI VE FAIRCLOUGH said she is not offering a fornal
anmendnent because she does not want to slow down the process on
this urgent matter since the session is only 90 days.

1:56: 22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER, in response to Co-Chair Gatto, stated
that the next stop for the resolution is the House fl oor.

CO- CHAIR GATTO advised that the commttee nust then get it
right. Fol | owi ng di scussion about whether to hold HIR 31 or
report it from commttee as anended, Co-Chair Gatto said he
woul d hol d the resol ution.

1: 57: 29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER spoke to Representative Fairclough's
suggested additional ["whereas"] |anguage. The intent of the
resolution is not to be specific and to anal yze the federal act,
he said, the intent is to sinply say that Alaska is managing its
own. Therefore, he is happy to not include extra |anguage as
the resolution is accurate as anended.

CO CHAI R GATTO hel d HIR 31.

HB 348- BOARD OF GAME REGULATI ONS

1: 58: 15 PM

CO-CHAI R GATTO announced that the next order of business would
be SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BILL NO 348, "An Act relating
to the adoption of regulations by the Board of Gane."

COCHAIR JOHNSON noved to [place] SSHB 348 [before the
commttee]. There being no objection, it was so ordered.

1: 59: 26 PM

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -14- February 13, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE WES KELLER, Al aska State Legislature, speaking as
the sponsor of HB 348, stated that Alaska's wldlife managers
are trained professionals who consult with the Board of Gane and
the public to ensure an abundant wldlife resource. For nore
than 10 years there has been repeated outside attacks on
Al aska's know edge, and these attacks are noney raising schenes

having nothing to do with science, he charged. The Lower 48
needs to get the nessage that people in Al aska understand
wildlife managenent and are doing a good job. Wldlife is a

val uabl e asset that generates incone for Al aska through view ng,
hunti ng, and guiding. He said SSHB 348 sends a nessage by
codifying Alaska Suprene Court |anguage that calls ganme an
asset . The bill «clarifies that Board of Gane regulations
adjusting the nethods, neans, seasons, and bag limts are all
all ocative in nature. He acknow edged that SSHB 348 may result
in nore work for the Board of Ganme but asserted that this is

good rmanagenent. The bill brings Al aska's constitutional
| anguage into statute by adding the term preferential use.
Using suprenme court and constitutional |anguage in statute

provides a rich context for clarifying the intent of Alaska's
Board of Gane, he opined. This bill and HIR 31 go together to
show Al aska's negative reaction to Congressnan George Mller's
bill, HR 3663.

2:03:22 PM

CO CHAIR GATTO  asked whet her M. Saxby can addr ess
constitutional questions about a statute.

KEVI N  SAXBY, Seni or Assi st ant Attorney General, Nat ur al
Resources Section, Cvil Division (Anchorage), Departnent of Law
(DAL), responded that it depends on the question.

CO- CHAI R GATTO opened public testinmny on SSHB 348.

2:04:11 PM

ROD ARNO, Executive Director, Alaska Qutdoor Council, testified
t hat his organi zation whol eheartedly supports SSHB 348.
Changing Title 16 by adding "asset of gane” would be of value to

all Al askans who use that wild food source, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG inquired why the change of |anguage
woul d be so inportant.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 15- February 13, 2008



MR. ARNO replied he clearly sees the reason from discussions
with the Division of Habitat over the past year. Al aska has
clear paranmeters for protecting fish habitat and fish streans,
he said, but there are few paraneters for uplands. For exanple,
t he value of the Nelchina caribou herd could be quantified as an
asset to the 7,000 Al askans who annually apply for that permt.
If an open pit mne was proposed for the uplands used by the
Nel china caribou herd, the value of that caribou resource could
be considered during the permtting process.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked why calling [gane] an asset
changes their function and how they are dealt with.

MR. ARNO answered he is a hunting guide not a |awer, but his
understanding is that if game are considered an asset |awsuits
could then be brought for civil damages.

2: 06: 37 PM

COCHAIR GATTO inquired what Title 16 is.

MR. ARNO stated Title 16 is the fish and ganme code.

CO CHAIR GATTO said he wants to nake sure what the bill proposes
to do is |egal

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON requested the Departnent of Law to address
how SSHB 348 nerges with HB 256 in terns of harvestable surplus
and hi gher |evels of human consunpti on.

2:07.:44 PM

COCHAIR GATTO reiterated his question about what Title 16 is

MR. SAXBY responded that Title 16 is the fish and ganme code. In
further response to Co-Chair CGatto, M. Saxby said he drafted HB
256 and he is the senior assistant attorney general assigned to
game i ssues.

CO CHAI R GATTO expressed his concern that using the word asset
m ght be a constitutional issue.

MR. SAXBY agr eed. The wrong statute is being used to address
t he i ssue, he said.

2:09:13 PM

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 16- February 13, 2008



MR. SAXBY began his testinony with the disclaimer that his
personal view is closely aligned with that of the sponsor, but
that he is charged with giving the nost objective |egal analysis
that he can. He said the Departnent of Law s testinony is page
2 of the fiscal note submtted by the departnent. He specified:

SSHB 348 was witten for the purpose of enphasizing,
in statute, the allocative nature of nmany gane
regul ati on decisions, so that such decisions would not
be subjected to the whinms of political change through

the initiative process. Unfortunately, the way the
bill is worded, it could easily be interpreted - and |
actually think it wll be interpreted - as serving

primarily to |limt the Board of Game's ability to
exercise many of its nost inportant powers to only
those situations in which the regulations are being
done "as a neans to allocate the asset of gane."
Because of this danger, the board would be forced to
build a record for every regulation during its
meetings which illustrates how the board is allocating
gane through that regulation. This would likely add
several days to each mjor board neeting, wth
resulting costs, and to nore legal argunents and
chal l enges regarding whether, and how, the board is
allocating, also with resulting costs. And perhaps |
can illustrate it this way. The underlying purpose of
[SSHB 348] is to affect what the public can or cannot
do vis-a-vis the initiative process. But what the
bill actually does is say what the Board of Gane can
or cannot do.... It ... effectively limts many of
the board's nobst inportant powers to only those
situations where the board is able to show that it is
in fact allocating gane. - That raises a real
potential conflict with the board' s enabling statute,
AS 16.05.221(b), which says, "For purposes of the
conservation and devel opnent of the ganme resources of

the state, there is created a Board of Gane ...." So
the board is created for the purpose of not just
devel opi ng, al l ocati ng, but al so for adopti ng
regulations that are related to a conservation
rational e. So, that ... is the effect that we see

with the current | anguage in the bill.
2:12:10 PM

CO- CHAIR JOHNSON inquired how the goal can be acconplished
wi t hout handcuffing the Board of Gane.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -17- February 13, 2008



MR. SAXBY replied the nore direct route would be to directly say
what the public can or cannot do rather than say what the board
can or cannot do. He said he cannot cone up with a specific
amendnment right now, but offered to approach the governor's
office and the ADF&G comm ssioner about tasking him with that
job if it is the commttee' s desire.

CO CHAIR JOHNSON said he cannot speak for the conmttee, but as
an individual representative he would Iike M. Saxby to do so.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON st at ed no.
2:13: 19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KAWASAKI noted that the term asset is referenced
in the finance section of the index of the statutes. |If gane is
consi dered an asset, does that nean it can be sold and traded,
he asked.

MR. SAXBY understood the sponsor's purpose in using the term
asset in SSHB 348 is to come within sone of the |anguage that
the Al aska Supreme Court has already issued, especially in the
Pullen v. U ner case. There was an initiative that would have
directly allocated up to five percent of escapenent, essentially
harvestable surplus, of salnon to sport and personal use
fishing. The [Al aska] Suprene Court ruled that was an inproper
subject for the initiative process under the constitutional

| anguage governing initiatives. Thus, the initiative was not
allowed to proceed to the ballot because it was a direct
allocation of a state asset - fish were an asset. He said he
t hought it could be deduced from that ruling that gane is
i kewi se an asset. So, in sone circunstances, an attenpt to
allocate gane through the initiative process would run afoul of
that suprene court case. He understood that SSHB 348 is an

attenpt to create that situation generally.
2:15: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said a 2/5/08 legal opinion from Brian
Kane, Legi sl ative Counsel, Legislative Legal and Research
Services identifies the sanme problem noted by M. Saxby. [ The
opi ni on addresses the question, "Wat does SSHB 348 do, and how
would this bill change the legislature' s constitutional nandate
to manage fish and gane resources?"] He read the second to | ast
paragraph of the opinion which states (original punctuation
provi ded) :

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 18- February 13, 2008



The main effect of these changes could be that the
Board of Gane is |imted in the reasons for which it
can adopt regul ations under AS 16.05.255(a)(2),
(a)(3), or (a)(4). Under the added |anguage, it is
possible that "to allocate the asset of gane" would be
the only reason the board could have for adopting
regulations to <carry out the provisions of AS
16. 05.255(a)(2), (a)(3), or (a)(4).

2:16: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG observed that fish are sold and
bartered and asked whether there could be a domno effect on
Al aska's game | aws. Additionally, he asked, would this turn
over the legislature's fiscal responsibilities to the Board of
Gane, creating a separation of powers issue.

MR. SAXBY answered the second question first. He said there is
a difference between noney and an asset, and there is probably
enough discussion in the Pullen case to be able to draw that
di stinction. He cited two reasons for why he does not think
there would be a problem of running afoul of separation of
powers issues: 1) assets do not necessarily include just noney,
they include state property such as conputers and other things;
2) Article 8 of the constitution gives the legislature the
authority to regulate the state's natural resources. The
| egi sl ature has delegated that authority to the Board of Gane
and the board cannot exceed the legislature's guidelines and
di rectives. Regarding the first question about the dom no
effect, M. Saxby stated that both he and |egislative counsel
Brian Kane are saying there is a potential domno effect the
commttee should be aware of should SSHB 348 pass as worded.

2:19: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON directed attention to a 2/11/08 |egal
opinion from M. Kane addressing the question, "Wuld SSHB 348

prohibit citizens' initiatives that restrict predator control
programs by restricting greatly or prohibiting outright the same
day airborne shooting of wolves?” He read a portion of

paragraph 2 in the opinion, which states [original punctuation
provi ded] :

| do not think that the additions to AS 16.05. 255(a)

by the bill wll necessarily prohibit a citizens
initiative regarding predator control or the sanme day

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -19- February 13, 2008



ai rborne shooting of wolves. As | stated in ny
February 8 nmeno to your office, the court will exam ne
the provisions of the state constitution w thout being
required to look at any statutory sections that m ght
relate to those constitutional provisions. The court

will look at the constitutional provision in question
and nmake its own determ nation based on that provision
al one.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON thus advised that SSHB 348, as currently
wor ded, would not accomplish its goal and could potentially have
severe consequences to the operation of the Board of Gane.

2:20: 39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG cited a 2/13/08 |egal opinion from M.
Kane responding to the question of, "How does the court's view
of an allocation of an asset factor into the prohibition of a
citizens' initiative in relation to an appropriation?' The crux
of SSHB 348, he said, is that it will nmake it a lot harder to
get through a ballot initiative regarding ganme mnanagenent. He
read the second to |ast paragraph on page 2 of the opinion which
states [original punctuation provided]:

Based on the court ruling in Pullen, the court would
likely consider that an allocation of what it
considers a state asset could not be allowed as an
appropriation in a voter initiative.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said there is a distinction between Pullen
v. U nmer and SSHB 348. Pullen v. U ner is about the allocation
of an asset between citizens of the state or groups of the
st ate. However, SSHB 348 would ban an initiative that would
prevent predator control, which is not an allocation between
different groups of citizens of the state. Thus, he said, the
conm ttee needs to ensure that the action it takes will actually
acconplish the intended goal.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked M. Saxby what M. Arno was
tal king about when he stated that calling gane an asset would
provide the ability to sue for danages.

MR. SAXBY responded he woul d be guessi ng.

2:23: 26 PM

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 20- February 13, 2008



CO CHAI R JOHNSON suggested a broader | ook be taken at this than
just aerial wolf hunting because it could include fishing, fur
trapping, and other things. He said if SSHB 348 was a piece of
legislation intended to stop a particular initiative, then he
woul d have trouble with it. However, he said he sees the bil
as an attenpt to wuse the state's professionals to manage
Al aska's ganme rather than the enotional outcry of outside
groups. Wiile one of the consequences may, in fact, be the wolf
hunting initiative, he said he would hate to see the commttee
get wapped around that topic when the real issue is to stop
managi ng ganme and bi ol ogy at the ball ot box.

2:24: 47 PM

SCOTT OGAN, President, Sportsnen for Fish and WIdlife (SFW,
pointed out that he is testifying on his own tinme and his
cooments do not represent his enployer, the Departnent of
Nat ural Resources, State of Al aska. He said Sportsmen for Fish
and WIldlife was founded with one main objective - to enable the
Al aska Departnment of Fish & Gane and the State of Alaska to
manage for abundance. He rmaintained that SSHB 348 does not
change existing laws on initiatives. It returns control of
Al aska's ganme nmanagenent to the preferential use of Al askans, by
Al askans, for Al askans, w thout the influence of outside special
interests, as prescribed in Alaska s constitution. "The Al aska
Departnment of Fish & Gane would be allowed to nanage gane as an
asset rather than managi ng people by unnecessarily limting or
cutting off seasons and bag limts", he stated. The depart nment
could establish scientific rather than political goals for
predator-prey relations to manage for maxi num sustained yield as
prescribed in the constitution.

MR  OGAN cited Uah's nmanagenent system of predator-prey
relationship which stopped the nortality of young ungul ates from
cougars and resulted in the flourishing of that state's
wildlife. Uah amended its constitution to require a two-thirds
vote to pass wildlife initiatives, he related. He noted that
when he was a nenber of the Al aska State Legislature, he opposed
giving priority for fish and game to one group of people based
on where they lived. However, he is now sitting on a board with
a person with whom he previously disagreed and the two of them
have put that issue aside to agree on the concept of SSHB 348

Al askans have been divided and conquered |ong enough, he opined,
and urban and rural Alaskans nust wunite and stand together
against outsiders who are trying to run Alaska through the
initiative process. The Al aska Suprene Court has spoken that
fish are an asset of the state and not subject to an initiative.

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -21- February 13, 2008



This bill would bring gane up to the sanme |evel of recognition
as fish, he said.

CO CHAI R GATTO cl osed public testinony.

2:30: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON i nquired what the net effect would be if
HB 256, SSHB 348, and the 2008 Aerial Wl f Ballot Initiative all

becane | aw.

MR. SAXBY replied that the underlying notives of HB 256 and SSHB

348 are simlar - to manage for abundance and thereby reduce
conflict. He said HB 256 is an effort to sinplify and clarify
the current laws and make them as workable as possible. He

noted that each time a sanme day airborne |aw has been passed by
the citizens, the legislature has had to act to sinplify it and
make it workable, and HB 256 would provide ways to nake it even
nore wor kabl e. He said he views SSHB 348 as an attenpt to
ensure that gane is treated as an asset and that regulation of
gane is viewed as allocation of assets. He said he thinks SSHB

348 will be unsuccessful and wll result in nore |egal
chal l enges, eventually serving to limt the Board of Gne's
powers rather than to nake its decisions nore defensible. [1f

HB 256] and the 2008 initiative pass, he said, the state wll
have a mandate to conduct active managenent for inportant gane
popul ations, which in some instances translates into a nmandate
to kill wolves, along wth another law that nmakes it extrenely
difficult to kill wol ves.

REPRESENTATI VE EDGVON agreed the state will have a nmess on its
hands if both HB 256 and the 2008 initiati ve become | aw

2:34: 31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked how classifying ganme as an asset
wi |l preclude mning operations in Al aska.

MR. SAXBY explained that game is already considered an asset

under current law, just like fish is considered an asset. The
dispute is over whether a given initiative 1is actually
all ocating an asset, he said. In Pullen v. Uner the court held
that - in that case - the initiative was a direct allocation of
a state asset. Regardl ess of whether or not SSHB 348 passes,
that will be the test the court wll Iook at should people
choose to nmke that argunment in the future. As to how

classifying game as an asset mght affect mning and other

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE -22- February 13, 2008



resource uses in the state, he said he believes it is the desire
of sone groups to see nore recognition of ganme as an inportant
asset when the commssioner of the Departnent of Natural
Resources is calculating a best interest finding for proposed
resource developnent activities in the state. Thus, explicit
| egislative recognition of game as an asset wll carry a bit
nore weight in some cases when these best interest findings are
bei ng nmade.

2:37:20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON i nquired whether this would relate only to
t he agency process of balancing a best interest finding or would
it pronote a legal challenge to the utilization of mning as an
asset versus the statutory designation of game as an asset.

MR. SAXBY answered he is wunsure he fully wunderstands the
guesti on. But, he said, having defended the state against
chal  enges by environnmental groups for a nunber of decades, he
knows that any hook or argunent available to an opponent of a

particul ar devel opment project wll be used. If there is an
argunent that can be nmade based on |egislative |anguage that
seens to add weight to an opponent's side of things, it
certainly will be used at sone point.

2:39: 04 PM

CO CHAIR GATTO said he is holding SSHB 348 so the sponsor can
work with M. Saxby and others to cone up with something that
does not give the commttee pause as far as constitutionality.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked when HIR 31 is needed to neet
t he congressional tineline.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER said he did not know [the congressional
timeline].

MR. POUND stated that Congressman Young would like to have the
resol uti on as soon as possi bl e.

2:41:52 PM

CO CHAI R GATTO reopened public testinony due to an error on the
W tness signup sheets.

ROBERT FI TH AN, Executive Director, Al aska Professional Hunters
Association (APHA), stated that his organization supports SSHB

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 23- February 13, 2008



348 because it wll protect and conserve Alaska's wldlife
resources, bridge the urban/rural divide, and create sound and

sustai nable econony throughout rural Al aska. Al aska's
stewardship failure due to ballot initiatives will rate in the
top five of all historical wildlife conservation failures in

North Anerica's history, he said. This bill wll facilitate an
ending of this situation and allow the Al aska Departnent of Fish
& Gane to do its job as nmandated by state constitution. He said
APHA believes it 1is inportant to wunderstand that Alaska's
founding fathers had no knowl edge and little foresight of the
political arena into which the state would eventually be cast to
effectively manage its wldlife as per their constitutional
requi renents. This bill would secure their work and provide for
the best interests of the whole of Al aska and not special
interests.

MR. FITH AN noted that the long-term sustainability of the over
$200 million a year guide industry is dependent upon allocation
of sustainable harvestable surpluses, and SSHB 348 wll help
generate this inportant requirenent. He urged the commttee to
work together to acconplish the bill's goals, even if it nmeans
new | anguage to resolve the Departnent of Law s concerns. He
related that APHA's counsel, Bill Horn, has advised that the
repeated references to fish and wildlife as assets is designed
to prevent any fish and gane oriented ballot initiatives. | f
fish and wildlife are assets they cannot be allocated by an
initiative, which is good. Just as inportantly, SSHB 348 does
not inpact the state's ability to allocate these resources anong

users, including providing preferential uses. Quide required
rules and other plans to facilitate guided hunting and fishing
likely fall within the scope of preferential uses. He noted

that the one concern cited by M. Horn has been brought to the
attention of the sponsor's staff.

2:45:48 PM

CO CHAIR GATTO inquired whether M. Fithian objects to the state
having an initiative process.

MR.  FITH AN responded no. In further response to Co-Chair
Gatto, M. Fithian agreed that the initiative process belongs
and is val uabl e.

CO- CHAIR GATTO pointed out that the cruise ship tax and the 90
day legislative session are both the result of initiatives, and
a failed initiative is the reason why the state does not have a
reserves tax. However, he said, there cannot be initiatives

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 24- February 13, 2008



that reappropriate or appropriate assets, especially noney,
because otherwise all the biggest cities would have all the
proj ects. Thus, there are strong restrictions on what an
initiative can do. The question is going to beconme whether the
term asset will have to be defined in a very specific way, but
right now, there nmay be a constitutional issue.

2:46: 55 PM

MR. FI THI AN commented that that there is very little ability for
the legislative body or the lieutenant governor's office to
prohibit the initiative process. The initiative process is a
met hod of fundraising for outside interests that care little
about the effect of their actions on the state as a whole, he
said. |If SSHB 348 can be constructed to benefit the whole, then
it starts to give sone of the stewardship provisions that are
needed.

COCHAIR GATTO agreed and said he would Ilike the Al aska
Department of Fish & Gane to be the scientists and the nmanagers.

[ SSHB 348 was hel d over.]
ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 2:48 p.m

HOUSE RES COWM TTEE - 25- February 13, 2008



